IN THE UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE FI FTH Cl RCU T

No. 99-41378
Summary Cal endar

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA
Plaintiff - Appellee
V.
FERNANDO S| LVA- ACEVES
Def endant - Appel | ant

Appeal fromthe United States District Court
for the Southern District of Texas
USDC No. C-99-CR-135-1
~ August 15, 2000
Before KING Chief Judge, and WENER and DENNI'S, Circuit Judges.
PER CURI AM *

Fernando Sil va-Aceves (“Silva”) appeals his conviction and
sentence for possession with the intent to distribute marijuana,
inviolation of 21 U.S.C. 8 841(a). He argues that the evidence
was insufficient to support his conviction, specifically, that it
was insufficient to show that he had know edge of the marijuana
di scovered in his tractor-trailer.

The evidence denonstrated that Silva owned the trailer in

whi ch the marijuana was di scovered; that he had been in

conti nuous possession of it; that he was extrenely nervous when

Pursuant to 5THCGR R 47.5, the court has determ ned
that this opinion should not be published and is not precedent
except under the limted circunstances set forth in 5TH QR
R 47.5. 4.
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st opped by Border Patrol agents; that his trailer had been
obviously altered and equi pnment which could have assisted in the
alterations was found in the cab of his truck; that receipts
recovered fromhis cab conflicted with the entries in his
official |1og book; that nost of his tine on the day the marijuana
was di scovered was unaccounted for; and that he had m sinfornmed
the contractor for whom he was working regarding the availability
of his truck on that date, leading to the inference that the
marijuana was | oaded at that tine. Thus, viewed in the |ight

nost favorable to the prosecution, the evidence was sufficient to

denonstrate Silva' s guilty know edge. See United States v.

Casilla, 20 F.3d 600, 606 (5th Cr. 1994); United States V.

D az-Carreon, 915 F. 2d 951, 954 (5th Gr. 1990); see also Jackson

v. Virginia, 443 U S. 307, 319 (1979).

Silva al so chall enges his sentence, arguing that the 105-
month prison termwas excessive, inposed in retaliation for his
havi ng exercised his constitutional right to a jury trial. H's
true argunent is that he shoul d have been sentenced instead to
the I owest end of the applicabl e guidelines range and that
anyt hi ng hi gher was excessive. However, there is no authority by
whi ch a defendant may chall enge where his sentence fell within a

properly-cal cul ated guidelines range. See United States V.

O Banion, 943 F.2d 1422, 1431 (5th Gr. 1991); cf. United States

v. Cardenas-Alvarez, 987 F.2d 1129, 1134 (5th Cr. 1993); United

States v. Sullivan, 895 F.2d 1030, 1032 (5th G r. 1990).

Silva al so chal |l enges the $10, 000 fine inposed by the

district court, asserting that it was also inposed in retaliation
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for his having exercised his right to a jury trial. His
assertion that a fine was not permtted is clearly incorrect;
both the guidelines and the statute of conviction required the
district court to inpose a fine, absent evidence of his inability
to pay. See U S. S.G 8 HbEl1.2(a); 21 U S.C. 8§ 841(b)(1)(B).

Al t hough the district court stated that a fine was appropriate to
rei mburse the Governnent for its trial expenses, its reasons for
inposing the fine are irrelevant to the question whether the
inposition of the fine was proper. See 8 5El.2(a). To the
extent Silva argues that the district court erred in considering
the prosecution’s costs in determ ning the anount of the fine

i nposed, the error, if any, was harm ess because the fine inposed
was actually $5,000 | ess than the m ni numrequired under the

rel evant guidelines range. See 88 5E1.2(c)(3) and (d).

Silva alternatively argues that the fine was inproper
because he is unable to pay. The PSR stated that Silva had the
assets to pay the fine, the district court specifically found
that his assets were sufficient, and Silva did not present any
proof of his inability to pay. Thus, the district court’s
finding that he was able to pay the fine was not clear error.

See United States v. Martinez, 151 F.3d 384, 396 (5th Gr.),

cert. denied, 525 U. S. 1031 (1998) and 525 U. S. 1085 (1999);

O Banion, 943 F.2d at 1431; 8§ 5E1.2(d) and (e). Silva asserts
that using his assets to pay his fine would be unduly burdensone
to his famly. Under the guidelines, the district court should
consider the financial burden a fine inposes on a defendant’s

dependents, and, if it is unduly burdensone, the court may | essen
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or waive the fine. 88 5E1.2 (d)(3) and (e). However, “[t]he
clearly enunciated purpose of a fine is a punitive sanction, and
it is not an abuse of discretion to inpose a fine that is |ikely

to constitute a significant financial burden.” United States v.

Mat ovsky, 935 F.2d 719, 722 (5th Cr. 1991). The fine inposed
was not unduly burdensone since it was significantly | ess than
the guidelines mninmumand since Silva’s famly wll retain in
excess of $50,000 fromthe sale of his assets, the mgjority of
their value, even after paynent of the fine. See 8§ 5El.2(e).
The district court’s inposition of a $10,000 fine was not error.

See Martinez, 151 F. 3d at 396.

AFFI RVED.



